




 1

     MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 

Tuesday, May 5, 2015 7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Vogt, Wilson, and Martin.  Absent: None. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

       PROCLAMATION – NATIONAL POLICE WEEK 
 
       Mayor Fess read the proclamation and presented it to Police Chief Bruce Jamison. 
     
       PROCLAMATION – MUNICIPAL CLERKS WEEK 
 
       Mayor Fess read the proclamation and presented it to Becky Cool, Clerk of Commission. 
 
       EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
       Move to Executive Session to consider matters regarded as confidential by federal law or rules or  
       state statutes 
 
       Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to move into executive 
       Session at 7:37 P.M. 
 
       Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt to adjourn from the Executive  
       Session and resume as the City Commission at 7:56 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Vogt,  
       Fess and Wilson. Nay: None.  
        
        Consent Agenda 
 
.       Approval of Minutes  
     
        Approval of the minutes from the April 21, 2015 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
 
        Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to approve the Consent  
        Agenda. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Vogt, Wilson, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried  
        unanimously. 
 
        OLD BUSINESS 
        
       ORD. NO. 5-15 (2ndt Reading) 
       An Ordinance amending Section 94.23 (I) relating to Curfew and Prohibitions on use of Parks and 
       Gazebo 
 
       Stacy Wall, Law Director, provided the Staff Report. 
 
       Ms. Wall explained the changes that were made to Ordinance 5-15 Section 94.23 (I) after hearing  
       requests for additional language at the April 21, 2015 Commission Meeting. 
   
      Commissioners offered several suggestions including having an officer walk a beat downtown, and  
      asked various questions regarding the proposed changes in the ordinance.  All Commissioners  
      were in agreement it is not fair to punish all young adults for the actions of a few. Several  
      Commissioners stated they went downtown and observed the actions of some of the youth.  
 
     Chief Jamison stated this problem was discussed at a City Commission Work Session in February 
     2015 after multiple complaints had been received regarding unruly behavior of unsupervised 
     juveniles disturbing patron of the Fort Piqua Plaza (Library, Plaza rentals, food service entities).  



 2

  Efforts to curtail these problems have ranged from discussions with the children that frequent the  
  area to proper behavior and language, to the  physical arrest of juveniles. Most of the complaints  
  have not come thru the Police Department, but the police have been notified later that citizens fear  
  to be in the area, afraid to get out of their cars because of intimidating tactics, and the use offensive  
  language. 
 
  There has also been damage done to the gazebo with youths observed climbing on the roof, and  
  doing dangerous activities around the gazebo, stated Chief Jamison. 
 
  Ordinance No. 5-15 would add a new prohibition to the city code that would disallow minors under  
   the age of 18 years old from being in the Public Square Area, the gazebo and Veterans 
   Way.  The area in questions is outside the Fort Piqua Plaza, bounded by Market and High Streets,  
  and Wayne Street.  Chief Jamison stated the Police department can use the proposed Ordinance as 
  a tool to provide supervision in the square as well as using it toward building “youth resiliency” in the  
  community.  Chief Jamison continued by stating the Ordinance will be used to provide “boundaries  
  and expectations” for juveniles to help the juveniles development.  We need to instill some  
  boundaries and expectations at the gazebo right now.  I think we have an obligation to help these  
   kid’s development and this situation requires more than just arrests at this point.  
 
  Chief Jamison said he was encouraged by the citizens and organizations reaching out to him with 
   offers to help with supervision in the downtown area, but we will still need the Ordinance to back up  
   the supervision. 
 
   City Manager Huff stated the changes were a result of input we received since the first meeting.  The  
   concerns included whether a juvenile would be able to ride their bikes through the park and what the  
   ordinance can do to provide more parental control. 
 
   Commissioner were in agreement parental supervision is lacking and there is a need for more  
   support from parents. 
     
   PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
   Several residents came forward and voiced their concerns on both sides of the debate on how to  
   address the concern of juveniles in the square and causing vandalism on the square.  
 
   Nick Alexander, S. Roosevelt came forward and voiced his opinion on the revised ordinance 5-15,  
   stating if the youth are chased out the gazebo area they will just go somewhere else like the steps at  
   City Hall.  
 
   Don Kuchta, Walker Street, stated there needs to be consequences for the actions of the youth and 
   suggested holding a Saturday school type consequence on the city level, possibly repairing the 
   gazebo.   
 
   Thomas Beck, Garfield Street, stated this is a bad solution to a real problem, stating his daughter  
   went downtown to the gazebo to have her prom pictures taken, and expressed frustration if the  
   ordinance were to be passed, if a juvenile would need parental permission or supervision in order to 
   have pictures taken at the gazebo next year. 
 
   Kazy Hinds, Whitetail Lane, said unfortunately it is something we need to do as there is a wider  
   issue with the youth having nothing to do, and have a lack of resources at home, and not being able  
   to afford to take part in activities offered at the YMCA.  We as a city need to be able to provide  
   something for the youth to do, stated Ms. Hinds.   
 
   Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, stated they should enforce the existing laws, further stating he feels  
   they need more Police presence in the downtown area.  Mr. Boehringer asked if it would be possible  
   to use the School Resource Officer during the summer months to help oversee the area. 
 
 



 3

    Paul Green, President of the Piqua Association of Churches stated family support is a big part of the  
    solution to some of the problems, further stating having someone from the Big Brother/ Big Sister 
    Organization spend time with the youth would help to make the youth feel they are important and  
    respected.   
 
    Joe Hinds, YMCA Youth Development Director stated he has witnessed first-hand the behavior at  
    the gazebo. Mr. Hinds further stated he would be willing to just go up and set on the bench 
    in the square and offer support to the youth.  Mr. Hinds challenged other residents to reclaim their  
    space on the square, and help with the problems by just being there. 
 
    City Manager Huff explained the enforcement of the Ordinance would be at the discretion of the  
    Police Officer observing the behavior. 
 
    Police Chief Jamison stated he is very much in favor of having adult volunteers help and will train  
    them in the proper procedure.  Chief Jamison encouraged the various groups and organizations to  
    sign up to help. 
 
    Law Director Stacy Wall, clarified the behavior of the youth, stating there is not a just a group of  
    good kids, and a group of bad kids, they are all still just kids. 
 
    Mayor Fess stated the lack of parental guidance is a major part of the problem, with the problem  
    beginning at home,  and is it not just in the City of Piqua.  Some of the youth are not taught respect,  
    and integrity at home so how can they use it in their everyday lives. 
 
    Commissioner Vogt stated he feels some of the young adults want to argue with authority, but if  
    you treat them with respect, you will get respect in return. 
 
   Mayor Fess stated the Commission appreciates all the comments they have heard, and the emails  
   and telephone calls they received offering input on Ordinance No. 5-15. 
 
    Ordinance No. 5-15 was given a second reading. 
 
    ORD. NO. 6-15 (2nd Reading) 
    An Ordinance amending Sections 154.027 of the City of Piqua Code of Ordinance to allow a place  
    of worship in an I-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 
 
   Justin Sommer Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director, provided the Staff Report. 
 
    This item was presented to the Planning Commission in response to a request from the owner of  
     the property located at 8564 County Rd. 25-A in Piqua.  The owner would like to lease the property  
     to a Place of Worship.  Currently a Place of Worship is permitted in all districts except the Industrial  
     zoning designation.  Vacant or commercial building spaces are often well suited to the needs of this  
     use type stated Mr. Sommer. 
 
     After review the Planning Commission concluded it would be prudent to include provisions to allow 
     the Place of Worship as a principal permitted use in the I-1 Light Industrial zoning district. 
 
     PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
     No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 6-15. 
     
    Ordinance No. 6-15 was given a second reading. 
 
    Resolution No. R- 78-15  
    An Emergency Resolution requesting authorization to enter into contract with CDM –Smith for 
    Amendment No. 2 to the Engineering Services for a Wastewater Treatment Plant Detailed Design 
 
    Dave Davis, Wastewater Plant Superintendent, presented the Staff Report. 



 4

  The Facility Plan has been modified to reflect the change to a new liquid treatment system and  
   dates have been modified in order to accomplish this scope of work,  The Ohio EPA has approved  
   Amendment #1, and the schedule in the NPDES Permit for discharge.  This scope of work will start  
   the detailed design of the WWTP improvements and take us to, and through the award of the  
   construction bidding process, stated Mr. Davis. 
 
   Commissioners asked several questions regarding the plans, and the new sewer rates in the future. 
 
    Mr. Davis and City Manager Huff provided additional information regarding the questions. 
 
   Public Comment 
 
   No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-78-15 
   
   Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution R-78-15 be  
   adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Wilson, Terry and Martin. Nay: None. Motion carried  
   unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-78-15 adopted. 

 
   RES. NO. R-79-15 
   A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into the Economic Development Revolving Loan  
   Fund (RLF) Agreement with the State of Ohio Development Services Agency for the period January  
   1, 2015 through December 31, 2017 
         
   Justin Sommer, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director, provided the Staff Report. 

 
    In March of 2015, the City of Piqua received correspondence from Ohio Development Services  
    Agency, Office of Community Development (ODSA, OCD) on Economic Development Revolving  
    Loan Fund Administration Agreement and Program changes. Communities administering Ohio  
    State Administered CDBG Economic Development RLF’s, Downtown RLFs. And/or Microenterprise  
    RLFs must consolidate all existing balances into a single Economic Development RLF Account and 
    sign an Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Administration Agreement, stated Mr. 
    Sommer. 
 
    The purpose of the agreement is to maintain adequate program oversight and ensure that  
    communities understand and adhere to the terms of the agreement in conjunction with  
    administering the RLF program.  This is effective for a three year period beginning January 1, 2015. 
    This agreement must be renewed every three years, failure to execute this agreement may result in  
    ODSA  recapturing the ED RLF dollars, stated Mr. Sommer. 
 
   The ED RLF ‘s will be available for low-interest, fixed asset, gap financing to City of Piqua for- profit 
    businesses or for publically owned infrastructure improvements directly related to job creation or  
    retention by a for-profit business, said Mr. Sommer. 
 
    Commissioners asked several questions regarding the need to set up a new Board, and if needed  
    who would sit on the Board, and the use of the funds. Mayor Fess stated this is State Money given  
    to provide help and promote and start new businesses, no city dollars will be utilized. 
 
   Mr. Sommer provided additional information. 
 
   Public Comment 
 
   No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-79-15. 
 
   Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-79-15  
   be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Terry, Vogt, Fess, and Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion carried  
   unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-79-15 adopted. 
 
     



 5

   RES. NO. R-80-15 
   An Emergency Resolution granting a temporary easement to Northrop Grumman Systems   
   Corporation     
       
   Law Director Stacy Wall, provided the Staff Report. 
 
   Northrop Grumman Systems Corporation is under an EPA mandate to install wells adjacent to their 
   property for the purpose of monitoring the quality of the groundwater. The wells are to be located so 
   as not to interfere or interrupt the use of the bike path in the Linear Park between Sunset and R.M.  
   Davis Parkway, and continue to meet the requirements of the EPA mandate. 
 
   The City of Piqua is granting a temporary easement for the purpose of assisting Northrop  
   Grumman Systems Corporation in monitoring groundwater, which is also a benefit to the City of  
   Piqua. 
 
   PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
   Nick Alexander, S, Roosevelt, came forward and voiced his concern over the possible closing of the 
   bike path, as he did not see and start or end date. 
 
   Ms. Wall stated they should be ready to start the next week, but we do not have a completion date,  
   as it is up to the EPA to say when it its completed.. 
       
  Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-80- 
 15 be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Martin, Fess, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried  
 unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-80-15 adopted. 
     
 RES. NO.  R-81-15 
 An Emergency Resolution acquiring JCRANE Inc. to provide crane and transportation services for the  
 Power System 
   
 Nick Berger, Assistant Power System Director provided the Staff Report. 
 
 On April 16, 2015, Power Services inspected and tested the Substation #3’s main 15/20/25/28 MVA  
 power transformer.  As a result of the test Substation #3 Transformer was found to have  
 unacceptable Doble Excitation Current test results indicating there is a short circuit between winding  
 turns, or physical damage to interlaminar insulation, or dislocation of core sections.  It was  
 determined the refurbishment of the substation transformer is an emergency situation as Substation  
#3 is a critical component to the city’s electric system. 
 
The power system received three quotes to provide crane services and transportation to deliver the  
106,000 lb. transformer to OTC.  JCrane was determined to be the lowest and best bid, and the  
 power system is requesting a 20% contingency for any unforeseen expenses, said Mr. Berger. 
 
Commissioners asked several questions, Mr. Berger answered all questions. 
 
 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-81-15. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-81-15  be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Fess, Vogt, and Wilson.  Nay, None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-81-15 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-82-15 
An Emergency Resolution obtaining OTC Services Inc. to provide Professional Field Services, Unit 
Inspection, and refurbishment for the Main Power Transformer for Substation #3 
 



 6

Nick Berger, Assistant Power System Director provided the Staff Report. 
 
On April 6, 2015 Power Services inspected and tested Substation #3’s main 15/20/25/28 MVA Power 
Transformer to evaluate the overall condition the transformer during preventive maintenance.  
Substation #3 Transformer was found to have unacceptable Doble Excitation Current test results.  
These results were discussed with Doble Engineering and they agreed with Power Service’s results. It 
was determined the refurbishment of the substation transformer is an emergency situation based on 
section 34.19 (B) of our City Charter on bidding process.   
 
The Power System requested quotes from Jordon Transformer and OTC Services Inc. to perform the 
field services, inspection, refurbishment, and rewind of the damaged transformer.  It was determined 
OTC Services Inc.’s provided the best proposal for these services. 
 
Commissioners asked several questions, Mr. Berger answered all questions. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-82-15. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No, R-82-15 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Wilson, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-82-15 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-83-15 
 An Emergency Resolution authorizing the execution of a loan agreement with Harvest Pantry, LLC, in 
the amount of $30,000 
 
Justin Sommer, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director provided the Staff Report. 
 
In 2009, the City received a $90,000 grant from the United Stated Department of Agriculture. This 
grant provides funding for an Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund which allowed for a great 
deal of flexibility on the eligible activities resulting in the development of small and emerging private 
business enterprises.  We received an application from Harvest Pantry LLC, a start-up company to be 
located in downtown Piqua that will operate a retail bulk food store. 
 
The business indicated they needed funds through the revolving loan program for acquisition and 
renovation of real estate.  The loan committee reviewed the loan application and determined that a 
loan of $30,000 be offered to Harvest Pantry LLC over a term of 6 years at a 3% annual percentage 
rate.  The loan will be secured by a second position on the real estate and is expected to generate 
$2818.35 in interest which will add to the revolving loan fund, stated Mr. Sommer. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Lisa and Rod Dotson applicants came forward and provided a brief overview of their plans for the new 
store, and the type of food items they plan to provide. Ms. Dotson thanked the City of Piqua and Justin 
Sommer for their support, further stating they are pleased to be a part of the community. 
 
Kelli Gerlach, an employee of Harvest Pantry LLC, came forward and explained what a Bulk Food 
Store is; further stating they plan to carry various foods items that can be purchased in a variety of 
sizes.  
 
Commissioner Wilson stated this is a great addition to the downtown, and asked when they plan to 
open.  Ms. Dotson stated they hope to be open in mid-July if possible, by August 1st for sure. 
 
Mayor Fess stated she is very excited to have them in Piqua and wished them well. 
 
 
 



 7

Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-83-15 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Vogt, Fess, Martin, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-83-15 adopted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Nick Alexander, S. Roosevelt, came forward and voiced his concern over some residents not getting 
their recycling picked up due to the change in days for some of them.  City Manager Huff stated they 
just need to contact the Health Department and they will send someone out to get it for them. 
 
Don Kuchta, Walker Street, came forward stating he has great respect for the recycling program but is 
unable to use the new recycling container.  Mr. Kuchta voiced his opinion and concern over the new 
large recycling containers stating a lot of residents do not have anywhere to keep such a large 
container, and have trouble getting them out to the pickup area.  Mr. Kuchta further stated his new 
recycling container was taken from his front sidewalk, and stated he contacted the Health Department 
to let them know. 
 
Mayor Fess stated you do not have to put the recycling out every week. 
 
City Manager Huff stated other types of bins can be used for recycling such as totes, and the red 
Rumpke recycling bin, further stating he will be happy to get him one. 
 
Lorna Swisher, Executive Director MainStreet Piqua, came forward and announced several upcoming 
events. Taste of the Arts will be held on  Friday, May 15 downtown Piqua, and thanked the City of 
Piqua for all of their support. 
 
A Duck Drop will take place On August 1, on the Great Miami River, and will take place immediately 
prior to the last Rock Piqua Concert. 
 
Ms. Swisher stated there are new Rack Cards available listing all of the upcoming events in the 
community and be picked up at the Mainstreet Office. 
 
Ms. Swisher announced the Piqua MainStreet Organization received the National Accreditation 
Program Award again this year, stating this is the 14th year in a row they have received this award. 
 
Thomas Beck, Garfield Street, voiced his concern over the possible new sewer rates and the 
unfunded mandate requirements.  
 
Paul Green, President of the Piqua Association of Churches, came forward and invited citizens to 
attend the National Day of Prayer to be held on Thursday, May 7, 2015 at 12:00 P.M. at the Fountain 
in front of the Municipal Government Complex. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Huff announced the week of May 4-8, 2015 is Public Service Week and thanked and 
recognized all of the city employees for their hard work. 
 
City Manager Huff announced Saturday May 9, is Piqua Community Clean-up Day and encourage 
residents to participate. 
 
City Manager Huff stated some of the residents will be selected to participate in a National Citizens 
Survey that the City of Piqua participates in every three years.  Mr. Huff encourage residents that 
receive a survey to fill it out and return it as it helps the city identify which areas are need of 
improvements. 
 
City Manager Huff announced Fire Chief Mike Rindler announced his retirement from the Piqua Fire 
Department effective May 29, 2015.  Assistant Fire Chief Brent Pohlschnieder will be named interim 
Fire Chief until the Civil Service process is completed and a new Fire Chief is named. City Manager 



 8

Huff congratulated Chief Rindler on his many years of service to the City of Piqua and the Community, 
and wished him well in his retirement. 
 
Commissioners Comments 
 
Commissioner Martin announced the Shawnee Neighborhood Association will hold a Special Meeting 
at 7:00 P.M.  Monday, May 18, at the Central Baptist Church on Staunton Street  The purpose of the 
meeting is to provide information to the residents about a survey they will be receiving and be asked to 
complete in regards to receiving CDBG Funds for improvements in the Shawnee neighborhood.  
Commissioner Martin encouraged all Shawnee residents to attend if possible.  City Manager Huff 
provided additional information regarding the CDBG funds and how they will be used. 
 
 Commissioner Terry congratulated Commission Clerk Becky Cool ,and Police Chief Jamieson on  
 Municipal Clerks Weeks, and National Police Week.  
 
 Commissioner Terry encouraged citizens to come out and help on Saturday May 9 with the City Wide  
 Clean-Up, further stating she will be working in Das Park with the North Parks Neighborhood 
  Association. 
 
  Commissioner Wilson also stated he to will be working on Saturday in the Downtown area, and  
  encouraged residents to pick up and clean up in their own neighborhoods. 
 
  Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular 
 Commission Meeting at 10:10 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, and Terry. Nay: None. 

 
 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











ORDINANCE NO. 6-15 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 154.027 OF THE CITY OF PIQUA 
CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW A PLACE OF WORSHIP IN A  I-1 LIGHT 
INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Charter Section 154.141 directs the 

Commission to take action on zoning amendment recommendations received 
from the Planning Commission at their next regularly scheduled meeting; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has studied a proposed 
amendment to the zoning code amending sections 154.027 of the City of Piqua 
Code of Ordinances to allow a Place of Worship as a principal permitted use in 
the I-1 Light Industrial; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has conducted a public hearing 
and made a report of its findings; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has submitted a recommendation 
to the City Commission; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Piqua City Commission, a 
majority of its members concurring that: 

SEC. 1.  That the City of Piqua hereby amends sections 154.027 of the City 
of Piqua Code of Ordinances as set forth in Exhibit A included herewith 
(deleted text lined through and proposed text bold and underlined): 

SEC. 2.  All other sections of Chapter 154 of the City of Piqua Code of 
Ordinances not amended herein shall remain in effect as is. 

SEC. 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 

 
            

                                                     
            
      _____________________________ 

   LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
1st Reading April 21, 2015 
2nd Reading May 5, 2015 
 
 
PASSED: __________________________ 
 
ATTEST: __________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
       CLERK OF COMMISSION  



 

Item #3 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE April 15, 2015 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 154.027 OF THE CITY OF 
PIQUA CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW A PLACE OF WORSHIP IN 
A I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

Department Director  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

This item was presented to the Planning Commission in response to a request 
from the owner of the property located at 8654 County Road 25-A in Piqua.  
The owner desires to lease use the property to a Place of Worship.  Currently a 
Place of Worship is permitted in all districts except the Industrial zoning 
designations.  Place of Worship uses often serve a regional base and prefer close 
proximity to major highways.  Vacant industrial or commercial building spaces 
are often well suited to the needs of this use type.   

The Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act of 2000 (RLUIPA) 
affords a house of worship broad protections from zoning and landmarking 
laws.  RLUIPA prohibits zoning and landmarking laws that substantially burden 
the religious exercise of churches or other religious assemblies or institutions 
absent the least restrictive means of furthering a compelling governmental 
interest.  RLUIPA also discourages a local government use of formal or 
informal procedures for making individualized assessments of a property's uses 
as it relates to a house of worship use activity. 

In reviewing this request the Planning Commission concluded that it would be 
prudent to include provisions to allow the Place of Worship as a principal 
permitted use in the I-1 Light Industrial zoning district and heard no objections 
from the public concerning the proposed amendment.  

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 



Source of Funds: N/A 

Narrative:   

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the ordinance and approve the proposed amendment to the Land 
Use; Zoning chapter of the Codified Ordinances. 

2. Defeat the ordinance and deny the proposed amendment to the Land Use; 
Zoning chapter of the Codified Ordinances. 

PROJECT TIMELINE April 14, 2015 – Planning Commission – Public Hearing 

April 21, 2015 – City Commission – 1st Reading  

May 5, 2015 – City Commission – 2nd Reading 

May 19, 2015 – City Commission – 3rd Reading 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed amendment to allow the use type as stated. 

ATTACHMENTS Ordinance, Exhibit A  

 







EXHIBIT A 

 

§ 154.027 I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT. 

(A) Intent. The purpose of this district is to provide for industrial uses with limited objectionable 
external effects in areas that are suitable for industrial development by reason of location, 
topography, soil conditions, and the availability of adequate utilities and transportation systems. 
The intent is to permit most manufacturing, wholesaling, and warehousing activities that can be 
operated in a clean and quiet manner, subject only to those regulations necessary to prohibit 
congestion and protect adjacent residential and business activities. 

(‘97 Code, § 150.381)  

(B) Principal permitted uses. 

(1) Light industrial uses. 

(a) Light manufacturing. 

(b) Construction trades and contractor offices. 

(c) Industrial craft shops. 

(d) Lumberyards and building materials sale and storage. 

(e) Laundries and dry cleaning plants. 

(f) Printing, publishing, lithographing and binding plants. 

(g) Warehouses and self-service storage facilities. 

(h) Wholesaling and storage facilities. 

(2) Transportation and utilities uses. 

(a) Heavy equipment rental, sales, service and storage. 

(b) Transportation terminals. 

(c) Public service yards and garages. 

(d) Public utilities. 

(3) Retail commercial and service uses. 

(a) Nurseries and garden supply stores. 



EXHIBIT A 

(b) Animal hospitals, veterinary clinics and kennels, animal grooming. 

(c) Sexually oriented businesses 

(4) Road service uses. 

(a) Automobile service stations. 

(b) Automobile repair, painting and body shops. 

(c) Vehicle sales, rental and service. 

(5) Institutional 

(a) Place of Worship 

(5) (6) Other uses. Uses similar to the above uses and any other manufacturing or industrial 
enterprise, operation, or process whether making, assembling, repairing, buffing, finishing, 
plating, polishing, tempering, packing, shipping, or storing; provided that any resulting cinders, 
dust, flashing, fumes, gas, noise, odor, refuse matter, smoke, vapor, or vibration is no greater or 
more detrimental to the neighborhood than the specified uses, that no extra fire hazard is created, 
and the permitted use as determined by the Planning Commission is similar in character to one of 
the specific uses in this section. 

(‘97 Code, § 150.382)  

 

 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-84-15 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE 
A DEMMING PUMP FOR THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT        
PLANT FROM EXCEL FLUID GROUP, LLC.   

 
 WHEREAS, Excel Fluid Group, LLC is the official representative for 
Demming/Crane Pumps & Systems; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ohio EPA mandate’s that the abilities of the plant be 
maintained to treat Wastewater at the approved designed flows; and 
 

WHEREAS, With approval from the OEPA to replace the #3 Drainage 
Pump, a 1957 model pump instead of the #1 Raw Sewage Pump due to it’s 
remaining in the plant system after the upgrade; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the 
City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The cost for the Pump and Installation along with a small 
contingency is not to exceed $47,833.00, and will be funded by Wastewater 
Plant Budget 2015. 

 
SEC. 2:  A Purchase order is to be drafted to order this pump as soon 

as allowable by law. 
 
 SEC. 3: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate 
account of the City treasury in payment according to contract terms; 
 
 
 
           
      __________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
                   REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 4
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

May 19, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A resolution authorizing to purchase a Demming Pump/Crane Pump  & 
Installation at  the Wastewater Plant from Excel Fluid Group, LLC. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:   Dave Davis, Wastewater Plant Supt. 
Department:      Utilities Division-Wastewater 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

       In late 2014 we found some significant structural issues with #1 Screw 
Pump that needed to be repaired. This repair is well beyond the abilities of our 
staff. A price quote for repairs was obtained along with cost for removal and 
trucking to and from the manufacturer’s facility in Georgia. We then checked 
cost to replace our alternate backup pump system (Drainage Pumps) which will 
remain functioning in the new plant upgrade and be replaced at that time. The 
cost to replace and install that pump was smaller and would remain in service 
after the upgrade where the #1 Screw Pump would be removed for good. OEPA 
was explained the alternatives and was agreeable to the fact of this being an 
alternative that would remain in the plant after the upgrade and would be a 
better investment for the city. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  2015 Budget- Maintenance account for repair  
Expenditure $:  Total $45,555.00 + an approx.  5% contingency of 

$2,278.00 = $47,833.00 
Source of Funds: WWTP Annual Budget 
Narrative:  These repairs need to happen one way or another, all cost 

will come from wastewater budget. 
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 
 

1. Approve and replace a 1957 vintage pump with a new one along with 
realizing a benefit to not having to purchase a new one with the plant 
expansion. 

2. Deny and repair #1 Screw Pump for a higher cost and realize no benefit 
from this purchase in the future planning. 

3.  

4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

Pump production time is 16weeks from placing order, then a month or so for the 



 Installation. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approve and place order for new Demming Pump as soon as possible, to 
replace #3 Drainage Pump. 

ATTACHMENTS  Quote from Excel Fluid Handling for Demming/Crane Pump replacement and Instalation & 
Warranty Statement 
Quote from Evoqua for #1 Screw Pump Repair 
Quote from Piqua Steel and Crane for removal of #1 Screw Pump and Trucking to and from 
Georgia Facility 
Pump Cost Comparison Sheet 
E-mailed approval from OEPA about the direction we are are looking to go with this 
replacement. 
Pump PP Pictures 
 

 





#1
 R

aw
 S

ew
ag

e 
P

um
p 

an
d 

#3
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

P
um

p 
C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

C
o

st

E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t f

or
 R

ep
ai

r 
of

 #
1 

R
aw

 S
ew

ag
e 

P
um

p 
in

 G
A

33
,4

50
.0

0
W

ar
ra

nt
 o

nl
y 

La
bo

r

E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t f

or
 C

ra
ne

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
 R

em
ov

al
 o

f P
um

p 
A

nd
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
to

 G
A

17
,4

35
.0

0
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
os

t f
or

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

to
 P

iq
ua

 &
 C

ra
ne

's
 fo

r 
in

st
al

l
17

,4
35

.0
0

T
o

ta
l

$6
8,

32
0.

00

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

o
st

Q
uo

te
d 

C
os

t f
or

 #
3 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
N

ew
 D

em
m

in
g/

C
ra

ne
 P

um
p

26
,8

25
.0

0

Q
uo

te
d 

C
os

t f
or

 #
3 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
P

um
p 

in
st

al
l b

y 
E

xc
el

l
18

,7
30

.0
0

T
o

ta
l

$4
5,

55
5.

00























#1
 R
aw

 S
ew

ag
e 
Pu

m
p



#1
 R
aw

 S
ew

ag
e 
Pu

m
p 
Da

m
ag
e



#3
 D
ra
in
ag
e 
Pu

m
p



#3
 D
ra
in
ag
e 
Pu

m
p



RESOLUTION NO.  R-85-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
TO AXTELL’S INC. FOR THE PIQUA 
AIRPORT – HARTZELL FIELD CRACK 
SEAL AND REMARKING PROJECT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, on January 6, 2015, this Commission passed Resolution No. 
R-6-15 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for the Crack Seal and Remarking Project at the Piqua Airport; and 

 
WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 

tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit A attached hereto;   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 

 
SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with Axtell’s Inc. as the lowest, 

responsible bidder for the Piqua Airport – Hartzell Field Crack Seal and Remarking 
Project and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said 
bidder pursuant to contract specifications.  

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 

hereby authorized to draw her warrant from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$50,000. 

 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 5
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE 
 

May 19, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Axtell’s Inc. for the Piqua Airport – 
Hartzell Field Crack Seal and Remarking Project. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy L. Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
On May 7, 2015, five bids were received for the Crack Seal and Remarking 
Project (see attached Exhibit A).  In general, the work will consist of crack 
sealing and remarking of runway 8-26, the taxiways and the apron, including 
the runway holding position markings.   

While the City has never worked with Axtell’s Inc. before, a comprehensive 
reference check has revealed that they are more than capable of performing this 
type of project as was evident by their extensive list of Airports they have 
worked for in the past, as well as the positive comments received as a part of the 
reference check process.       

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $50,000  

Expenditure $:  $50,000  (including contingency) 

Source of Funds: 101 Fund (Airport Fund) & Ohio Airport Grant 

Narrative:  Through the Ohio Airport Grant Program, the City 
received funding for 90% of the project construction.  The 
City will provide 10% of the construction cost, which 
based upon the bids, will be a maximum of $5,000.  This 
resolution includes a contingency for items of work which 
may be required which are not included in the original 
plans and specifications.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution and complete the crack seal and remarking of the 
runway at the Piqua Airport.  

2. Do not approve the resolution and do not complete the work at the airport 
and return the grant funding. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The work will begin as soon as possible and has a completion date of July 27, 
2015.   



 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve the resolution to allow for the completion of the crack seal and 
remarking project at the Piqua Airport – Hartzell Field. 

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation (Exhibit A) 

 



 1
4-

06
 P

IQ
U

A
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
-H

A
R

T
Z

E
L

L
 F

IE
L

D
 C

R
A

C
K

 S
E

A
L

 A
N

D
 R

E
M

A
R

K
IN

G
 

B
ID

 T
A

B

It
em

Q
u

an
ti

ty
P

ri
ce

E
xt

en
si

o
n

P
ri

ce
E

xt
en

si
o

n
P

ri
ce

E
xt

en
si

o
n

P
ri

ce
E

xt
en

si
o

n
P

ri
ce

E
xt

en
si

o
n

P
-1

00
 -

 M
O

B
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 -

 L
S

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

12
,4

49
.0

0
$ 

   
   

12
,4

49
.0

0
$ 

   
   

8,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

8,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

5,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

5,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

P
-4

20
 -

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 C
R

A
C

K
 R

E
P

A
IR

 -
 L

F
20

,0
0

0.
00

   
   

   
0.

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
7,

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
0.

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
12

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
0.

65
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
13

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
1.

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
31

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
3.

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
65

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   

P
-6

20
 -

 R
U

N
W

A
Y

 M
A

R
K

IN
G

 (
W

H
IT

E
, W

IT
H

 B
E

A
D

S
) 

- 
S

F
20

,0
0

0.
00

   
   

   
0.

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
11

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
0.

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
12

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
0.

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
12

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
0.

45
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
9,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
0.

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
11

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   

P
-6

20
 -

 T
A

X
IW

A
Y

 M
A

R
K

IN
G

 (
Y

E
LL

O
W

, W
IT

H
 B

E
A

D
S

) 
- 

S
F

2,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
  

1.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
12

5.
00

$ 
   

   
  

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
75

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
45

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
12

5.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
62

5.
00

$ 
   

   
  

P
-6

20
 -

 O
U

T
LI

N
E

 M
A

R
K

IN
G

 (
B

LA
C

K
, N

O
 B

E
A

D
S

) 
- 

S
F

7,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
  

0.
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
96

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

4,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

4,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2,
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
85

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

M
-1

03
 -

 C
LO

S
E

D
 R

U
N

W
A

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

R
S

 (
O

W
N

E
R

-F
U

R
N

IS
H

E
D

) 
- 

E
A

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
2,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
40

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  

M
-1

0
7 

- 
A

V
IA

T
IO

N
 B

A
R

R
IC

A
D

E
S

 -
 L

F
70

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
70

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

70
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

05
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
35

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

70
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

M
-1

0
7 

- 
B

U
C

K
E

T
 B

A
R

R
IC

A
D

E
S

 -
 L

F
18

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

36
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
90

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
70

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

10
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
14

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

25
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

T
o

ta
l B

as
e 

B
id

29
,5

21
.0

0
$ 

   
   

45
,9

39
.0

0
$ 

   
   

43
,9

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

48
,8

55
.0

0
$ 

   
   

88
,0

2
7.

00
$ 

   
   

P
-4

20
 -

 C
R

A
C

K
 S

E
A

LI
N

G
 -

 L
F

4,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
  

0.
45

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2,
40

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

1.
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

3.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

14
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

P
-6

20
 -

 P
E

R
M

A
N

E
N

T
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 M

A
R

K
IN

G
 -

 S
O

LI
D

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 S
F

11
,0

0
0.

00
   

   
   

0.
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
45

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

4,
95

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

5,
83

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

P
-6

20
 -

 P
E

R
M

A
N

E
N

T
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 M

A
R

K
IN

G
 -

 S
O

LI
D

 B
LA

C
K

 -
 S

F
11

,0
0

0.
00

   
   

   
0.

34
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
3,

74
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
0.

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
0.

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
0.

45
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
4,

95
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
0.

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

05
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  

T
o

ta
l A

lt
er

n
at

e 
B

id
 1

12
,1

40
.0

0
$ 

   
   

15
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

17
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

16
,1

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

25
,8

8
0.

00
$ 

   
   

P
-4

20
 -

 C
R

A
C

K
 S

E
A

LI
N

G
 -

 L
F

2,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
  

0.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

0.
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

1.
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
70

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

1.
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

3.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

M
-1

0
7 

- 
A

V
IA

T
IO

N
 B

A
R

R
IC

A
D

E
S

 -
 L

F
30

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
0.

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
90

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

10
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
P

-6
20

 -
 P

E
R

M
A

N
E

N
T

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 M
A

R
K

IN
G

 -
 S

O
LI

D
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 S

F
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
1.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

T
o

ta
l A

lt
er

n
at

e 
B

id
 2

2,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

1,
39

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

5,
35

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

5,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

10
,1

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

T
o

ta
l B

as
e 

an
d

 A
lt

er
n

at
e 

B
id

s
44

,2
61

.0
0

$ 
   

   
62

,9
29

.0
0

$ 
   

   
66

,2
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
70

,5
55

.0
0

$ 
   

   
12

4,
00

7.
00

$ 
   

 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

It
em

 L
is

t 
#3

 A
lt

er
n

at
e 

B
id

 2
 -

 Q
u

an
ti

ty
 S

h
ee

t

ax
te

ll'
s 

p
av

em
en

t 
so

lu
ti

o
n

s
A

xt
el

l's
 In

c.
P

S
 C

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 F

a
b

ri
cs

, I
n

c
H

i-
L

it
e 

A
ir

fi
el

d
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 L
L

C
A

m
er

ic
an

 P
av

em
en

ts
, I

n
c.

It
em

 L
is

t 
#1

 -
 B

as
e 

B
id

 -
 Q

u
an

ti
ty

 S
h

ee
t

It
em

 L
is

t 
#2

 A
lt

er
n

at
e 

B
id

 1
 -

 Q
u

an
ti

ty
 S

h
ee

t





 

 

Commission Agenda      Item #6   
Staff Report 

MEETING DATE May 12, 2015  

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 
A LEASE AGREEMENT TO PERMIT THE USAGE OF A PORTION OF 
FPOUNTAIN PARK TO MIAMI VALLEY CORVETTE CLUB 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

City Planner  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

The Miami Valley Corvette Club desires to host a car show at fountain Park.  
The event will be open to the public and the display area will primarily occupy a 
shaded grassy area between the dining hall and Hance Pavilion.  The event will 
be essentially the same as last year excepting there will be no musical 
entertainment.     

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 

Source of Funds:  

Narrative:  
These type of community events contribute positively to a 
community’s quality of life and the local economy.  

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the resolution to authorize the lease. 

2. Defeat the resolution and deny the lease. 

PROJECT TIMELINE May 19, 2015 Regular City Commission meetings.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS 1. Resolution and lease agreement and special event application 

 



 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this   day of       2015, by 
and between the City of Piqua and the Miami Valley Corvette Club as follows: 
 
Section 1:  For one dollar and other valuable consideration, the City leases to the Club the 
below-listed public park facilities for the day of June 13, 2015 
 

That portion of Fountain Park between Hance Pavilion and the dining hall. 
 
Section 2:  The Club shall occupy and use the leased premises solely for the purposes of the 
annual Independence Day celebration and related activities. 
 
Section 3:  The Club shall obtain liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager at a 
minimum coverage of $1,000,000. 
 
Section 4:  The Club shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City of Piqua, Ohio, its 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers against any and all liability, loss, costs, damages, 
expenses, claims or actions, including attorney’s fees which the City of Piqua, Ohio, its 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to pay, 
arising out of or by any act or omission of the Club, the City of Piqua, Ohio, their officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers, in the execution, performance or failure to adequately 
perform Club’s or City of Piqua’s obligations pursuant to this contract. 

Section 5:  The Club, its assigns, heirs, successors, employees and any and all subcontractors 
are independent contractors and are not agents and/or employees of the City of Piqua.   
 
Section 6:  This agreement shall not be assignable.  
 
Section 7.  The Club and all vendors shall comply with all inspections and obtain any permits 
required prior to display of automobiles, at the Club’s expense. 
 
Section 8.  The City shall review and contract with all exhibitors.  No contract with any 
exhibitor shall place any liability upon the City. 
 
Section 9.  The Club shall be responsible for basic clean-up of the facilities after the 
conclusion of the festival. 
 
Executed as of the above-referenced date by: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Gary A. Huff, City Manager                            President, Miami Valley Corvette Club 
City of Piqua                                                                                   



Form Name: Special Event Permit Application
Submission Time: February 8, 2015 10:00 pm
Browser: IE 11.0 / Windows 8.1
IP Address: 69.133.44.55
Unique ID: 182414836
Location: 39.254901885986, -84.239097595215

Section 1 - Applicant Information
Event Name Miami Valley Corvette Club Car Show
Applicant Name Steve Greggerson
Applicant Name Steve Greggerson
Applicant Address 9450 N Hetzler Rd

Piqua, OH 45356
Applicants Phone Number (937) 773-0831
Applicant's Email Address jgreggerson@woh.rr.com
Event Sponsor Miami Valley Corvette Club

Section 2 - Event Information
Event Location Fountain Park
Will This Event Take Place or restrict
use on Public Streets, Bikepaths,
Sidewalks for Other Public
Rights-of-Way?

No

Will streets and/or roads need to be
closed for this event?

No

Will This Event Take Place in a Public
Park, Public Building or other Public
Facility?

Yes

Will This Event Take Place in an Indoor
Public Facility?

No

Date of Event Jun 13, 2015
Alternate Date of Event Jun 13, 2015
Event Description This Car Show is sponsored by the Miami Valley Corvette Club, open

to all, cars will be judged in several categories.
Request Description This Car Show is sponsored by the Miami Valley Corvette Club, open

to all, cars will be judged in several categories.
Event Set Up Start Time 08:00 AM
Event Start Time 10:00 AM
Event Finish Time 04:00 PM
Event Tear Down Finish Time 06:00 PM

Section 3 - Event Details
Please provide the name and cell
phone number of an Emergency
Contact for the event.

Steve Greggerson 937 418-0748

Will the general public be invited to
this event?

Yes

Anticipated Attendance for Event 100+ vehichles
Will the event require electric service? Yes



Will the event require a water
hook-up?

Yes

Will tents or other temporary
structures be erected?

Yes

Will fencing or other perimeter crowd
controls be erected?

No

Will you required EMS/Fire Service? No
Will food and/or beverages be served? Yes
Will alcholic beverages be served? No
Will food and/or beverages be served
for sale?

Yes

Will you provide additional
dumpsters/trashcans and trash
removal services?

No

Will there be amplified noises created
by the event?

Yes

Will there be open burning of fires at
the event?

No

Will the event include a parade? No
Will the event include amusement
rides and/or inflatables?

No

Will the event include
non-domesticated or agricultural
animals?

No

Please provide details of the food
and/or beverages to be sold

For profit and non-profit groups have been invited in the past to
participate in the show.  
These groups have been responsible for required food service
permits required for compliance with health standards.

Will merchandise be sold? No
Will admission fees, entry fees or other
fees be charged?

Yes

Please describe the fees being charged Registration is $10 per vehicle.  
Please indicate what services you will
provide for the event

Parking Control Staff
Security Personnel

Have you provided a site plan to the
Development Department?

No

Which departments or other
organizations have you notified of your
event?

We have notified planning dept.

Please provide any additional
information and necessary details
regarding the event

The car show become an annual event used as a fundraising
operation for charitable donation.  We have donated to the Bethany
Center, Hospice of Miami County and the Johnston Farm.  We have
not identified a recipient for the funds raised this year but this will
be done soon and then publicized along with the Car Show. 

Section 4 - Additional Insured
Contact Information for the Insurance
Company providing Certificate of
Insurance for the Event

National Corvette Club of America



Do you have the ability to obtain this
insurance?

Yes

Have you emailed the Current
Certificate of Insurance (ACORD Form)
naming the City of Piqua as an
additional insured party to the
Development Department?

No

Please provide any additional
information and necessary details
regarding the Additional Insured
Request

We will present the necessary forms for insurance coverage to the
City of Piqua prior to the show.

Agreeing to Pre-Planning and Lease
Conditions

By checking this box, the submitting party agrees to attend any and
all pre-planning meetings that may be required and to meet all
conditions of leases that may required.



RESOLUTION NO.  R-87-15 
 

 A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO WESTERN 
OHIO ASPHALT SEALING, LLC FOR THE REPAIRS, CRACK 
FILLING, SEALING AND PAVEMENT MARKING FOR THE 
MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT COMPLEX PARKING LOT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, on January 6, 2015, this Commission passed Resolution No. 
R-6-15 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for the Municipal Parking lot repairs, crack sealing and pavement marking; and 

 
WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened on April 17, 2015, 

resulting in the tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit A attached hereto;   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 

 
SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with Western Ohio Asphalt 

Sealing, LLC as the lowest, responsible bidder for the Municipal Government parking 
lot repairs and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said 
bidder pursuant to contract specifications.  

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 

hereby authorized to draw her warrant from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$31,000.00. 

 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 7
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
May 19, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO WESTERN OHIO 
ASPHALT SEALING, LLC FOR THE REPAIRS, CRACK FILLING, 
SEALING AND PAVEMENT MARKING FOR THE MUNICIPAL 
GOVERNMENT COMPLEX PARKING LOT 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Bob Graeser, Project Manager  

Department:  Engineering 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

 
 

Work will include repairing all catch basins so that parking areas will drain properly, 
all cracks will be filled, and complete parking surface will be sealed and have new 
pavement markings.  
To reduce the impact to employees and operations of the MGC this work will be 
performed when the building is closed.  

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:  $31,000.00 for Base Bid 

Expenditure $:  $31,000.00  (includes contingency) 

Source of Funds: MGC Building fund  (001-002-818-7553)  

Narrative:  This resolution includes a $1,088.86 contingency for 
items of work which may be required which are not 
included in the original plans and specifications.   

 
OPTIONS 

 
 

1. Approve the resolution R-88-15 to repair the MGC Parking lot.  

 

2. Do not approve the resolution R-88-15 and give staff further instruction.  

PROJECT TIMELINE It is anticipated this work will take place between June and the end of July of 
2015.       

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Approve the resolution to allow for MGC Parking lot repairs.  

ATTACHMENTS  IFB # 1512 Bid Tabulation (Exhibit A) 

 
 
 
  





 

RESOLUTION NO. R-88-15 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO L. J. DEWEESE FOR THE 
WEST INTERCEPTOR TO ECHO LAKE PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 6, 2015, this Commission passed Resolution No.R-7-
15 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to law, for 
the 2015 West Interceptor to Echo Lake; and 

WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 
tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit A attached hereto;   
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 

SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with L.J. Deweese Co., Inc. as 
the lowest, responsible bidder for the 2015 West Interceptor to Echo Lake Project 
and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder 
pursuant to contract specifications. 

SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$230,830. 

 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from 
and after the earliest period allowed by law. 

 
 
      ___________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION



 

 

Commission Agenda      Item #8   
Staff Report 

MEETING DATE May 19, 2015  

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO L.J. DEWEESE CO. INC, 
FOR THE WEST INTERCEPTOR PROJECT.  

SUBMITTED BY Devon Alexander, Storm Water Coordinator 

Storm Water Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

City Planner  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

The West Interceptor Project will elevate the pre-existing ditch that runs from 
Sunset Drive, to Echo Lake. There will be roughly 800 feet of pre-existing 
storm water ditch vacated, and a new 36” storm water pipe will be put in place 
with the vicinity of the ditch.  

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  $240,000 

Expenditure $:  $230,830 

Source of Funds: 411-000-175-1750 

Narrative:  
The bid for L.J. Deweese came in at $209,845. With a 10% 
contingency, that would put the amount at 230,830. The 
engineers estimate was $234,850. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the resolution to authorize the utility easement. 

2. Defeat the resolution and deny the utility easement. 

PROJECT TIMELINE May 19th, 2015 Regular City Commission meetings.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS 1. Resolution and AECOM Recommendation Letter 

 









1
4

-0
9

 W
e

st
e

rn
 D

itc
h

 o
f 

E
ch

o
 L

a
ke

B
id

 T
a

b
E

xh
ib

it 
A

It
em

Q
u

an
ti

ty
P

ri
ce

E
xt

en
si

o
n

P
ri

ce
E

xt
en

si
o

n

20
1 

- 
T

re
e 

R
em

ov
ed

, 4
-1

5 
In

ch
es

 -
 E

A
.

13
.0

0
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

20
1 

- 
T

re
e 

R
em

ov
ed

, 1
6 

In
ch

es
 &

 L
ar

ge
r 

- 
E

A
.

3.
00

1,
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

30
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

40
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

20
1 

- 
C

le
ar

in
g 

an
d 

G
ru

bb
in

g 
(I

nc
lu

de
s 

di
tc

h 
cl

ea
ni

ng
) 

- 
L.

S
.

1.
00

29
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
29

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

23
,5

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
23

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

20
2 

- 
P

ip
e 

R
em

ov
ed

, 3
6 

In
ch

es
 a

nd
 U

nd
er

 -
 L

.F
.

34
.0

0
30

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
02

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

47
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

20
2 

- 
P

ip
e 

A
ba

nd
on

ed
 (

C
ut

 a
nd

 P
lu

g 
C

on
du

it)
,3

6 
In

ch
es

 a
nd

 U
nd

er
, A

s 
P

er
 P

la
n 

- 
E

A
.

2.
00

25
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

20
3 

- 
E

xc
av

at
io

n 
&

 E
m

ba
nk

m
en

t (
D

itc
h 

G
ra

di
ng

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n)

 -
 C

.Y
.

45
0.

00
40

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
35

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

15
,7

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  

20
7 

- 
T

em
po

ra
ry

 S
ed

im
en

t a
nd

 E
ro

si
on

 C
on

tr
ol

 -
 L

.S
.

1.
00

3,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

25
3 

- 
P

av
em

en
t R

ep
ai

r 
- 

S
.Y

.
13

.0
0

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

30
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

15
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

95
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

51
1 

- 
C

la
ss

 C
 C

on
cr

et
e,

 H
ea

dw
al

l -
 C

.Y
.

5.
00

70
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

60
1 

- 
R

oc
k 

C
ha

nn
el

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n,

 T
yp

e 
B

 w
ith

 F
ilt

er
 F

ab
ric

  -
 C

.Y
.

26
.0

0
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
90

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
70

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
82

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

60
1 

- 
R

oc
k 

C
ha

nn
el

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n,

 T
yp

e 
C

 w
ith

 F
ilt

er
 F

ab
ric

  -
 C

.Y
.

12
0.

00
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

18
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

7,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

60
1 

- 
R

oc
k 

C
ha

nn
el

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n,

 T
yp

e 
D

 w
ith

 F
ilt

er
 F

ab
ric

  -
 C

.Y
.

10
.0

0
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
62

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

62
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

61
1 

- 
24

-I
nc

h,
 R

C
P

 C
la

ss
 IV

 S
to

rm
 S

ew
er

 w
ith

 T
yp

e 
2 

B
ed

di
ng

 a
nd

 C
om

pa
ct

ed
 G

ra
n.

 B
ac

kf
ill

 -
 L

.F
.

8.
00

15
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

80
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
64

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

61
1 

- 
36

-I
nc

h,
 R

C
P

 C
la

ss
 IV

 S
to

rm
 S

ew
er

 w
ith

 T
yp

e 
2 

B
ed

di
ng

 a
nd

 C
om

pa
ct

ed
 G

ra
n.

 B
ac

kf
ill

 -
 L

.F
.

12
.0

0
22

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
70

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

61
1 

- 
30

-I
nc

h,
 R

C
P

 C
la

ss
 II

 S
to

rm
 S

ew
er

 w
ith

 T
yp

e 
2 

B
ed

di
ng

 a
nd

 C
om

pa
ct

ed
 B

ac
kf

ill
 -

 L
.F

.
20

.0
0

17
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

61
1 

- 
30

-I
nc

h 
S

to
rm

 S
ew

er
 w

ith
 T

yp
e 

2 
B

ed
di

ng
 a

nd
 C

om
pa

ct
ed

 B
ac

kf
ill

 -
 L

.F
.

29
1.

00
12

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

36
,3

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

43
,6

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  

61
1 

- 
S

to
rm

 M
an

ho
le

 w
ith

 6
0-

In
ch

 B
as

e 
an

d 
S

ol
id

 L
id

 -
 E

A
.

5.
00

3,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
17

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

10
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
50

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

61
4 

- 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 A

s 
P

er
 P

la
n 

- 
L.

S
.

1.
00

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

62
3 

- 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

La
yo

ut
 S

ta
ke

s 
- 

L.
S

.
1.

00
1,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

62
4 

- 
M

ob
ili

za
tio

n 
- 

L.
S

.
1.

00
5,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
15

,1
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

15
,1

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  

65
1 

- 
T

op
so

il 
S

to
ck

pi
le

 -
 C

.Y
.

15
0.

00
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2,
25

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
40

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

65
2 

- 
P

la
ci

ng
 S

to
ck

pi
le

 T
op

so
il 

- 
C

.Y
.

15
0.

00
30

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2,
25

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

65
9 

- 
S

ee
di

ng
 a

nd
 M

ul
ch

in
g,

 C
la

ss
 1

 L
aw

n 
M

ix
 -

 S
.Y

.
14

25
.0

0
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
70

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
85

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

S
pe

c.
 -

 S
ee

di
ng

 a
nd

 M
ul

ch
in

g,
 S

ha
de

 T
ol

er
an

t T
ur

f G
ra

ss
 M

ix
tu

re
 -

 S
.Y

.
47

5.
00

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

80
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

42
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

S
pe

c.
 -

 P
er

m
an

en
t C

he
ck

 D
am

 P
er

 D
et

ai
l  

- 
E

A
.

3.
00

1,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

S
pe

c.
 -

 R
oc

k 
C

ha
nn

el
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n,
 T

yp
e 

C
 w

ith
 F

ilt
er

, P
er

 D
itc

h 
R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
D

et
ai

l -
 C

.Y
.

40
.0

0
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

6,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
70

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

S
pe

c.
 -

 R
oc

k 
C

ha
nn

el
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n,
 T

yp
e 

D
 w

ith
 F

ilt
er

, P
er

 D
itc

h 
R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
D

et
ai

l -
 C

.Y
.

75
.0

0
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

11
,2

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

4,
87

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 

S
pe

c.
 -

 S
to

rm
 M

an
ho

le
 w

ith
 6

0-
In

ch
 B

as
e 

W
/ O

rif
ic

e 
P

la
te

 a
nd

 G
ra

te
d 

Li
d 

- 
E

A
.

1.
00

7,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
10

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

S
pe

c.
 -

 B
yp

as
s 

P
um

pi
ng

, A
s 

D
ire

ct
ed

  -
 L

.S
.

1.
00

1,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

S
pe

c.
 -

 F
ie

ld
 T

ile
, U

nd
er

dr
ai

n,
 C

ul
ve

rt
, S

an
ita

ry
 S

ew
er

 S
er

vi
ce

,W
at

er
 L

in
e,

 a
nd

 G
as

 L
in

e 
R

ep
ai

r/
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t, 

A
s 

D
ire

ct
ed

 -
 L

.F
.

50
.0

0
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
  1

,7
50

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,2

50
.0

0 

T
O

T
A

L
 B

ID
20

9,
84

5.
00

$ 
   

   
23

3,
83

1.
00

$ 
   

   

L
.J

. D
eW

ee
se

 C
o

., 
In

c.
B

ru
m

b
au

g
h

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

, 
In

c.

It
em

 L
is

t 
#1

 -
 B

as
e 

B
id

 -
 Q

u
an

ti
ty

 S
h

ee
t


	May 19, 2015 Agenda
	2015 - 050515 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	ord05_15_3
	ord06_15_3
	ord06_15_3
	ord06_15_3b
	ord06_15_3c
	ord06_15_3d

	res84_15
	res84_15
	res84_15b
	res84_15c
	res84_15_compare
	res84_15_quotations
	res84_15_budget_proposal
	res84_15_pcs_agreement
	res84_15_slides

	res85_15
	res85_15
	res85_15b
	res85_15c

	res86_15
	res86_15
	res86_15b
	res86_15c
	res86_15d

	res87_15
	res87_15
	res87_15b
	res87_15c

	res88_15
	res88_15
	res88_15b
	res88_15c
	res88_15d


